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NTRY (CLUB. INC.

Valley Golf, the premier golf and country club providing unparalleled
recreational experience to our members, their families and guests.

To provide, world-class golf and recreational facilities and efficient, high
quality services to its members, families and guests; a friendly atmosphere,

affordable cost and the employment of dedicated and service-oriented
personnel.

It is the overriding goal of the Club to promote the game of golf, enhance
harmony and fellowship and instill courtesy, discipline, honesty, fair play
@ and integrity among all its members.
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TABLE OF CONTENTS PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Indeed, a challenging journey, serving two past presidents as direclor (Finance committes) and
finally taking the halm as President.

Your board and managemeant under my stewardship has beean faithfully and fully guided by our

PRES'DENT'S REPGRT 1 commitment (o good governanca, finandcal discipling and transparancy.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2 We are pieased to report our significant milestones for your guidance and appreciation,
¥
TREAEUREH 5 REFGRT 3 Tha investmeant in the sutsourcing of the rehabilitation and maintenance of the South and Morth Courses s well rewarded with the
GDMPLETED AND CIN GD|NG PRGJECTS 4 continuous improvemant in the conditions of our coursas followad by the full rehabilitation and improvemeant of the bunkers.
The financial conditions of the club 5 a classic turnarcund fram a deficit of Php14.0 million in 2015 (o surples of Phpt.2 million
in 2016, Tha factors maybe alinbuted to as follows:

LIST OF COMMITTEES 5]
CDMMITTEE HEPG RTE E‘ . ;:tﬂm;is;lli:;wings (full effect) of the legacy cost amounted to Php3 0 million as a result of the stall strearmlining and

= Thea sirict implemeniation of cost savings across the board: no salary increase, no new hires, reduced subsides in
RE FDRT DF |NDEFENDENT AU D‘lTG HE 13 the sports, mean budget for board and committee meetings and othar adminksiralive expanses. Operaling expenses

was decreased by Php3 6 million

=  The Finance Commitiee under the guidance of Chair Alaxander Marguez and Vice Abraham Deta Cruz concepiualize

STATEMENTS GF FI NANEIAL PDSITIDN 1 E alternalive revenues and successfully raise funds in the form of discounted green fees and discount promos on transfar
fews, initial service charges, renewal of playing rights and locker rentals
STATEMENTS GF INEDME 1? =  The real estale committes under the guidance of chair Abraham Dela Cruz had a holistic review of the non-parforming
@ assels of the club and iu!:ﬂas_ah.lll:.r sold and raised PhpB.T million, supporting our capital expanditures. @

STATEMENTS GF CGMPREHENE'VE |NCDME 13 = Additional F & B concassionairg (Jay-J') at tha Morth clubbousa.
STATEMENTS 'DF CHANGES IN MEMEERS? EQU ITY 19 5:I?:slh:ri?;n:;;n;s;rhn:argﬁuna?l af tha fairway conditions, our shares is recordad 1o be the most actively traded in 2016 with tha
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 20 New reciprocal agraements and holel e ups:

=  Sherwood Goff and Country Club
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 21 Forest Hills Golf and Country Club

Eastridge Golf and Counlry Club
EdsaShangr-La Hotel
MNovelel Holel

INSIGHTS OF EVENTS (2015-2016) 58 :

Projects under process and engoing as follows:

« Rohabililation of the bag drop area
[ Build, lxagse, operale and transfer of the driving range by Freaport Elile Resor, Inc,
. Globe Telécoms tower 1o enhance wirglass communicalion signal reception,

While your board has accomplish mast af the sl godals for 2016 more challenges lie ahéad as we conlinug 1o aspire and change
for the batler.

My Sincere thanks to my fellow members, board of directors and management for the confidence and untiring support in the
pursult of our endeavors for the betierment of our club,

JAIME F. PANGANIBAN
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The fizcal year 2016 is a challenging year for the Treasury, Our primary CoOncarns are
financial recovery and cash flow stability by the end of the fiscal year. We chose to approach
these objectives in two ways, thru prudent cost management without sacrificing the quality
of services to our members and guests and thru improving our variable revenue sources.
Tha Board of Direclors and our Officers ware the first to help us in this endeavor by cutting
down on expenses that lack necessily and urgency, As a general principle we pricnized our
capital expendilures and projecis were subject to availability of funds before the start of the
project, For this year we focused on the rehabilitation of the South Course particularly the
bunkers, the pumps, the sprinkler system and on Phase 2 of the renovation of the
Bag drop area..

To increase our revenue sources as well as improve the liquidity of our finances several revenue generalion schemes were
introduced this year such as our 50% discounled rate for fransfer fee and renewal fee, sale of green fee cerlificates,
promos on locker rentals and golf carl storage fees and the discounted green fee rates promos. On the sale of green fee
coupons, the Club enlered into an agreement with another Korean group for a minimum purchase of 1,000 green fea
coupons. Cost control measures were undertaken to reduce the operating expenses at the most reasonable level and
we are pleased to report that our cost of operations for the year considerably decreased by P3.21 Million.

Reflacted in the audited financial reports are the results of our cperations for the period July 1, 2015 to Juna 30, 2016.
Excess of revenue over expenses for the year is Php1.22 Million, a considerable improvement from the net loss of
Php14.18 Million of the previous fiscal year. Gross revenue for the year is Php115.26 Million or an increase
of Phpt.24 Million from last year's figure of Php108.42 Million. Income sources that increased during the yvear ware
Service charge from playing rights, Golf cart rental, Locators’ Fee, Green fee, Road Users' fee, Locker rental and golf cart
storage. Income from sale of green fee coupons to Koreans, Transfer fee and Concessionaires' fee decreased during the
year, Other revenue sources include the gain on sale of property in the amount of Php8.73 Million.

Cn the part of our operaling expenses, the Personnel Expenses decreased by PhpB. 14 Million and Supplies decreased
by Phpi.18 Milliocn. The decrease in Personnel expenses includes the decrease in salaries & wages and employees’
banefits by Php4.64 Million thal resulted from the eary retirement of 25 emplovees, Total personnel cost amounts
o Php27 .66 Million or 24% of the total revenue. ltems that increased include Qulside services by Php? .63 Million mainly
because of the outsourcing of the Ground's Maintenance and Sundries also increased by Php2.87 Million.

We would like o note the impressive improvemeant in our Balance Sheel. Our Current Assels amount to Php38.38 Million
or an increase of Phpd Million from last year. On the other hand our Current Liabilities is at Php30.08 Million or a decrease
of Php3.23 Million, theraby improving our Liquidity ratio to 1:3:1 for this year. During the year we paid Php3 Million of our
Loan from Members and on August 2016 we paid another Php2.5 Million, 50 as of this date we are glad toinform our
members that our club is finally free from loans and finance charges after 21 years. Looking at the overall financial
perfommance of the Club for this fiscal yvear, we would like to report thatl this is a good year for us.

During the year the Treasury conducied three (3) auctions of deliquent shares of stock. We weare able to sell seven (7)
shares with the highest bid at Php300k plus transfer fee. The Club is currently processing the transfer of the Php12.47 Milion
Retirement Fund to Philippine Veterans Bank Trust & Investment Division.

| wish to express my deepest appreciation to President Jimmy Panganiban, Members of the Board of Directors, to the
Finance Comittee for their unselfish dedication of their lime and experlizse, the Management and Staff for their support
and cooperation, and for the rust and confidence bestowed on me. It has been my pleasure and privilege to sarve as
your Treasurer.

— = j =
ALEXANDER S. MARCUEZ J

Annual Report 2015-2016 3

Valley Golf & Country Club inc - Inside.indd 6-7

SSSSSSSSSSSNNSNSNNN

9/22/2016 6:59:02 PM



: . COMBLETED AND ON-GOING PROJECTS
(AUGUST 2014 TO JULY 2015)

COMMITTEE MEMBERS -

AUGUST 2015

Construction of Additional Golf Cart Storage Area
Construction of chairs and tables storage room.

SEPTEMBER 2015

Construction of collapsed chb perimeter wall fence at Hole # 3 North Course.

De-silting at lagoon # 12 South Course

APRIL 2016

Removal of water lilies at Lagoon # 5 and # 10 South Course

Removal of water lilies at Lagoon # 6 North Course

MAY 2016

De-silting of Lake # 17 going to Lake # 1 North Course.

De-silting of Lake # 9 North Course

Laying Of Additional CHB at perimeter fence besides Hole # 8 South Course

JUNE 2016

Repair and re-painting of Canteen at Motor pool area.

Installation of Concrete support at CHB wall fence at Hole # 3 South Course.
Removal of water lilies at lake # 8 North Course
Construction of Humps at Ortigas Gate

ON - GOING WORKS

Riprap works at the back of Green # 6 North Course
Renovation of Bag Drop Area Phase 2

4 Annual Report 2015-2016
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EINANCE COMMITTEE
REPORT

GROUNDS COMMITTEE
REPORT

The Finance Committee being the principal committee assigned to oversee the finoncial well being
of our Club was tasked fo initiate and devise the financial recovery plan for the Fiscal year 2016 to
have o positive result of operation. To recover from the Phpl4 Million net loss is quite a challenging
task tor the committee.

The committee focused on tapping other sources of revenue as well os improving the cash flow of
the Club. The recommendations submitted to the Board include the following:

50% discount on initial Service Charge of playing rights members.

50% discount on Transfer Fee

Payment of the Php5.5 Million loan from members

Sale of green fee certificates with discounts.

Accompanied guests green fee rates promo for the South Course

Sale of permanent lockers.

Golt cort storoge promo rates

Recommendation to reduce operating costs by discountinuing free drinks promo.

Creation of a technical working group to evaluate contracts.

Supported the recommendation of the Real Estate Commitiee on the sole of Vaolley Golf lots.

® & & & & & & & ® @

The strict implementation of the budget policy that all copex is subject to availability of funds wos
observed by the committee. For the fiscal year 2016 the committee endorsed the release of funds for
copital expenditures and projects in the amount of Php9.84 Million.The copex were mostly concentrated
in the improvement of the South Course.

The Retirement fund of Vialley Golf wos transterred to the Philippine Veterans Bank Trust and Invesiment
Division. The level of the fund as of June 30, 2016 is Php12.47 Million. The committee will continuously
monitor the investiment strategy of the fund.

The audited financial reports for the yeor ending June 30, 2016 was reviewed by the committee
with the exdernal ouditors, Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. fo ensure complionce with occounting and oudit standards.

For the coming Fiscal year 2017, the Finance Committee spearheaded the preparation of the Financial
and Business Plan where the primary objective will be the Club’s finoncial liquidity to sustain operations
and various projects.

TRUST FUND COMMITTEE REPORT

Trust Fund level as of June 30, 2016 is ot Php4,262,495.14. Included in the fund are the 5% share
in the sale of lot in the amount of Php399,876.46 and 5% share in the sale of unissued shares in the
omount of Php35,700.00 as well as the interests earned for the year amounting to Php5,731.78.
In compliance with the provisions of the Club’s By-lows the Trust fund is invested in o universal bank
with interest rate at .9% (net) p.a.

B Annual Report 2015-2016
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Grass Renovation of Tees, Fairwoys and Green Surrounds. The renovation started on holes 5, 6 & 7 in
May of 2015. The original program was scheduled to be 3-year program. Due to the request of the Grounds
Committee, the new schedule is to finish this program on the first week of Januvary 2017 [reducing the
schedule to 1/2 of the original) to be able 1o prepare the South Golf Course for the 2017 DCT in April.

At present holes completed under this proegram are Holes 1 t0 10, 12 & 18.

Greens gross renovation starfed on May 2016. On Greens no. 1 to 11 the foreign gross has been sodded out ond
reploced with new sod from the green nursery, in the next couple of months the level process will be done
to ensure the greens are smooth. The remaining holes with be started and will be finished sodding by the
end of November.

Bunker Renovations. This project wos started in December 2015. The Bunker renovation entails the removal
of the old sand, esfoblishing a new bunker edge, new drainage installation and the installation of 6" new bunker sand.

Bunkers that hove been completed are Holes 1 to 10 and 18. The projected schedule of complefion is February 2017,

South Course Imigation System. On the South Course the controllers & spnnklers of the irmgation system have

completely gone through oll repairs ond have been completed. An additional 97 sprinklers hove been
planned and installation will start this October,

One of the most important things that need to be accomplished before the upcoming dry season is the South
Course Pump Siofion. Due to the age of the Station and the fact that it continves breakdown it is strongly
recommended to replace this station.

MNorth Course Irrigation System. Plans are underway to rehabilitate the North Course pump slation and
irrigation system.

Gross Mursery. The originol gross nursery for the greens ond foirwoys hos been completed. The need o
expand the fairway nursery was approved and the nursery on the South Course will be made larger next
to the 12th tee. An additional nursery is under construction near Hole 4 Tee House on the North course.

Tree Trimming. This is on ongoing project. Tnmming of the lower branch is underway on both the South
and North Courses. As the grass renovation projects start to be completed more emphasis will be put on this.

ENGINEERING COMMITTEE REPORT

The repair and mointenance works on all furbine pumps for both the South and North course has been completed.
Desilting of lakes ot holes 1, 9 and 17 of the NMorth Course has been completed.

On the South course, riprop works along Hole 17, instollofion of concrete wall support clong perimeter fence
of hole 3 and installation of additional concrete hollow block on the perimeter fence of hole 8 were omong
the projecis completed.

Improvement and rehabilitation of the pump stafion at the South Course and the improvement of the design
of the irrigation system ot the North course are among the few projecis that will be undertoken by the
committee in the near fulure.
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SPORTS & GAMES
COMMITTEE REPORT

HOUSE COMMITTEE
REPORIT

Fiszal year anding June 30, 2014 wos o banner year for Cliub lournamaents, with 132,41 1) member-onky iournements and g record
number of poetipants,

The 17" Don Celso Tuoson & Yaolley Foonders” Cup Townomend wos hald from Agal 28 fo Moy |, 7014 under fie Chaoirmanship of
Direcice Lowie Cbogue, comsidered io be the grondest ever in the hisiory of the tovmament, =ith on Audi AF os the grond prize. A sofal of
S02 feoms with S04 membenguest ployers signed up far this annuol fournoment, e modd sincs the Club changed fo 0 one-Cowwse per
sesiion foomab, From the regiirotion fees, sponsorships and odditional proceeds from roffle ficeeis, the iowrmoment genesaled o ioial of
Ba 10l 07516, which included a dob subsidy in the amourd of P00, 17517, whils spending o tolal of P5 31972495 lor prizes ond
Toud fipmend axpsides, respiing o o poding Coih wilflaw of PTE4 348.21

It ks e ol g af thei R‘r‘i:l!-" 'Cuﬁl-lr'rgpu-lald Tk "."n"rr Barkedabsa Taumanwal wiueh Harg yoder, Codremenied o Apdil ard,
was paiopated in by 1 ieema with 276 ployers, the Spot and Games Commilies inroduced o rre guanierly lournomaent, shicly wall
culrmineds @ 4 Toursereid of Champean 1o ba bald they Oebabsar

Wolley Golf & Country Club members ogoin brought honor ond prestigs fo The Club os represeriodives in vonous baumonants o ond
pubsde the Philippines. Among them were

EHZ REGULAR TEAM
«  CHAMPHON = Avialor Division, 6% Pol Interchub Golf Towmomem

Mimoso Goll & Country Club, bne. = Feb 29-March &, 2016
«  JUSTIM LiMAP

CHAMPMOR, Regulor Division, 2016 Motisnal Tournameni of Club, Chompions, Arsaya Cove. Apeil 37, 2014
¢ LUIS CHITO LALRETA

CHAMPON, Senicis Diison, 016 Mabanal Tournamen of Club Champians, Armays Cove, dgnl 27, 2014

LADHES

= 15 RUMHER UP - Ruby Divisian, Luzvemin Goll Irmsohonol
Rancho Polos Verdes, Dovoo City, Moy 25-27, 7016

= 1¥ Runner up = 2014 Lodies Federation Goll Leagus

SEMIORS
*  Lowess Ceross Tegem Champion lor the year 2015
@ « 2015 FPASG, Son Juan Cup, Orvchard Gald & Couniry Club

Dec. 10, 2015
Eddy Josa Mantanaret and Edvarda Baglan were members ol the Philipoine Gross Team, thal iimmthed Bunnec-up m Asson Senion
Amateur Goll Chompionmhegs
15 hald & Chiang Man, Thadond last Ociaker 27-29, 1015

¢« Ediarda E-uﬂlm wtid 1l dnedos! Oweall Lew Grass Chamipican

JUHGOLE
» CARL lAMO B CORPUS
= Boys 1415 yrs odd division chompson
College Prep Series of LSF, Apnl 16:17, 2014
Hurricanm burvior Golf Tow
o (Oweroll Chomipion, 14- 18 yre old divisson
HUGT Cronge Loke Junior Open, Reserve af Oronge Loke, Kaimmes, Florido
Apel T3-34, 2015
i Champien, 15-18 wri ald drerian
WG hsniar Goll Towr, Al ED-MW 1. 2004
The Lf"ﬂ't'lfﬂl'l- ] ﬂn::um Lake, Qilomids Flonda
Champsan, AGA luniss All Sier g1 Forggale
Presenied by the Spirnaker Foundofon
Forsgote Courdry Club = The Polrmes Course
Monnge Towmship, ML), Moy &-B, 701 &

The Sports ond Cromes Commities oocepled o foded of 81 non-member formoments held ot the Maorth ond South course durng thes. post
fiscal yeor, generofing reverwes throogh fournament fees amounting to Php 2,368,817 40, while olio bringing in soles of merchondea,
food ond drinks, whene the dub receves 10% kom groes soles. Coddies ond umbrello gels, likesise, benefi from these iournoments

The annwal Chisimes Porty and Goll Towrnament for Employess ond Coddies were beld ond were o huge swecess, wilh greemwoys ond
roffle pripes awoernded ia the parlicipants

Oren Bifamr, e gluly weeruld ke ba thank all the mesrlesy and amipleseet fod fapparhng all ihe dearmarents ane e agtiotes ol the ¢l

Luis G. GChsogue
Direcios
Chairman, Sports & Comes Commuttes
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The May ond Decernber Bingo Sociol events hove alwoys been much owoiled otcosions of the Vaolley Golf Club. These
aré amang fhe few limes when members, along with their families and guests, gel o esperience the fedve
otmosphers ot the club browght obout not just by the vary sxciting bingo gomes but os well oz by the enjoyoble parlor
games, the delicious food spread fhot wos offered and the numerous gift cerificates that were given oway o the lecky
winnars. CH course, the ralile prizes were well.onficspoted os these mcluded several impressive hegh-tech godgets and
the Yamoho Golf cort ond the Hyundaoi Accont os grond prizes

Part of the procesds of these bi.annual achvibies wend 1o the hending the volundary grotuity for the seraces of ow
retiring coddies ond o vonious DEWD Gowad Kolingo projects, We hove olso used o porfion of the generoted funds fo
purchose additional iables and chairs 1o be usad in varoos club sponsored evenis

The House Commifles oo mokes o confinuous effort fo diclogee with the curent chubhouse concessionoine os fo how
they can further impreve the quality of fosd ond senices they render to the members and guests. To reinforce ihis, the
club hos siofioned o stolf at the mon Veronda 1o monitar, o3 well as o hondle and occept ony complosnts o

suggesfions
Some of the on-going plans / projects of the House Commities include:

Creahng mone Club acfniies cotenng bo our families

Joy-i's our FEB concessionaire i the Marth Clebhouse

Ranovahon and wpgroding owr Deving Range

Impravamant af the bag drop area of the South Courde [Phase 2 includes caddies”
woiling orea, Bog sioroge, umbsella girls® locker oreo, ond stoff office area)

Renovation of the swimming pool

Acipalies moxemizing olher {ocililias sech a3 Lower Veranda, Swimming Poal orea, eie

Constructing on gir-conditioned Bor ond Grill for members ond guests

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE REPORT ®

The Membership Committes was able fo process the following oppliconts during the Fiscol Yeor
July 2015 - Juna 2014:
1. Proprietary Members

a. Individual = 72

b. Corporation - 4

2. Corporate Representative = 10
3. Playing Guesis - 9
4. Associote Members - 5

The present membership of the Club as of June 30, 2016 is broken down os follows:

1. Proprietary or shareholders: - 1,593
1.1. Individual — 1,265

1.2. Corporafion - 328

2. Corporate Representatives - 204
3. Playing Rights - 113
4. Associate Members - 8
3. Sociol Member - 1

Applicants for membership who has been screened and interviewed by the Membership
Committee are infroduced to the Board of Direclors in o "Meet the Board Social” before they are
formally accepted as members of the club.

The Commitiee likewise acled on several complaints, incidents and membership matiers
invalving club rules, eligibility ond other concerns.
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ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE
REPORT

During its meeting on April 21, 2016. the Board of Directors approved the implementation of the
Organizational Improvement Program (OIP). This Program covers the streamlining of the present
argonizational structure and the development of salary administration guidelines, job evaluation and
clossification and performance appraisal. This resulied in salary adjustments and increases last
July 1, 2016 after a lapse of 3 years.

Also, successfully negotiated and concluded the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) with the Samahang
Gobay ng Manggogowa sa Vaolley Golf [SGMVG) with their adviser from Federotion of Free Workers [FFW).

Upeon the inihative of the Committee, the FCU and Associates conducted an inhouse seminar on “Improvement
of Customer Service” to our employees last June 20, 2016. Twenty eight (28) frontline employees
attended. The Committee hopes that this will result in the improvement of customer service skills in dealing
with customers, shareholders and stakeholders.

To improve the financial condition of VGCCI, we will still implement the freeze hiring policy to rationalize
costs, except when the need arises as determined by the Board of Direciors. When the rationalization program
started three yeors ago, stoffing was downsized from 117 to the current 87,

REAL STATE COMMITTEE REPORT

The Real Estate Commitiee plays an imporiant role in the financial recovery of our Club. The mandate
of the Board of Direciors to tap olternotive sources of revenue was the primary goal of our commitiee for
this fiscal year. There are on-going priority projects like the rehabilitation works for the golf courses
and the improvement of our facilities that need additional funding. For the fiscal year 2016, the Reol
Estate Committee was able to finalize and secure the approval of the Board on the sale of two of the Club's
lots with o total area of 1,449 5q. meters tor aggregate proceeds in the amount of Php?.79 Million. We are
currently in the process of finalizing the sole of another lot with estimated proceed of Php2.2 Million.
Commercial lots along Don Celso Tuason Ave. were also published for possible sale or rental.

Legal issues on land disputes involving the properties of Valley Golf were also brought to the attention of the
Real Estote Committee. Hacienda Benito is claiming ownership of the Morth Course and other lots while the
Valley Golf Hills Homeowners' Association, Inc. filed a complaint with the HLURB demanding the turnover
of the Don Celso Tuoson Ave. and cloiming its right to regulate the use, manogement and control of soid road.
The approval of the Memorandum of Agreement on the donation of lots to informal settlers is still pending
resolution with the RTC of Antipolo since a group of informal settlers filed an opposition on the Compromise
Aggreement. The cases are being handled by our legal counsel and with consultafion with the Real Estate
Commitiee and the Board of Directors. The Club is the rightful owner of the lots and roads being daimed having
supporting documents and previous Supreme Court cases decided in favor of the Club.

10 Annual Report 2015-2016
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As mandated by the Monual of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors appeinted the
members of the Audit Committee for the fiscal year 2016. The Audit Committee is primarily
responsible in assisting the Board in the performance of its oversight responsibility and monitors
compliance with the system of internal conirols and policies of the Club.

The Audit Commiittee, with the approval of the Board of Directors, appointed Cafirma, Ong & Co.,
CPAs to perform the internal audit functions of the Club.

Through the assistonce of Cofirma, Ong & Co., CPAs, the Audit Committee hos completed
the Internal Audit Operations Manual. The said manual served as o ready reference for the
Club’s Internal Audit Group operating policies and procedures; and facilitated proper delineation
of functions and responsibilities of various positions in Club’s internal Audit Group through
proper planning, quality contrel and job administration.

In order to achieve these extensive and comprehensive objectives, the Audit Committee regularly
meets to review and evoluate the oudit ond financial reporis as well as the over-all operations of
the Club. The initials focus is on the review of the work flow and operating systems of each
department to determine the control points that will be continually adopted and those that need
to be improved. Several policies and practices were reviewed and revised for efficiency. The final
output of these audit review will be the Operations Manual of the departments of the Club.

To assist each department in the development of Operations Manual, the Internal Audit Group,
with the approval of Audit Committee, has conducted a seminar on the Development of Standard
Operating Procedures which guided each department in aligning its objectives to the Club-wide
objectives. Through these established procedures, the officers and employees can maoke decisions
more rapidly and can build confidence, knowing that the results from one operation to the next
will be uniform, thus enhancing efficiency.

The Audit Committee is also keen in monitoring the operating expenses and service provides of
the Club to ensure the best price, quality and for transparency. Existing and expiring contracts are
also being regularly reviewed by the Committee. The Audit Committee also actively particapated
on the auction of shares of stock.

The Audit Committee coordinated closely with the Club’s external auditors, SyCip Gorres Velayo
& Co., in the review of the Audited Financial Reports for the fiscal year 2016 to ensure that
audit was done in compliance with the Philippines Standards on Auditing.

Annual Report 2015-20186 11
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AD HOC COMMITTEE ON
RECIPROCITY AND
MARKETING REPORT

For the fiscal year 2015-2016, the Reciprocity ond Marketing Committee has successfully negotiated ;::!LIE? Gn:: & 'Cl:lnl;.ln:frn‘ﬁ:rfll-lh- Inc.
onprofit Organiza
with Sherwood Hills Golf Club, Eastridge Golt Club and Forest Hills Golt & Country Club to be the
local reciprocal clubs of Valley Golf which extends 50% discount on green fees for Valley Golf Financial Statements
i E ; ; June 30, 2016 and 2015
members in good standing during regulor weekdays. Members may also bring guests to the and Years Ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014
reciprocal clubs which shall pay the regular member accompanied green fees and other charges S

subject to course availability and booking thru the Membership Office as well as enjoy the privilege
of having access to the same facilities of the host club that are extended 1o their members subject repencent Auditns: Rt

to the existing policies of that club.

Successtul tie-ups with Edsa Shangri-Lo and Movotel Araneta Center led to the introduction of hotel
room packoges including rounds of golf to the vast international market - highlighting our golf
courses as one of the best and most challenging in the country. The First Novotel Golf Fellowship
Tournament waos held to create comaroderie between the hotel executives, international fravel ogency
partners ond Valley Golf Past Presidents, Committee Members ond Directors through the gome of golf
aond most of all, to showcase both the reputable hotel and golt courses.

The Committee aims to promote Valley Golf to potential clients, both local and international in hopes

of generating revenue to the Club for sustaining various projects in the near future.

SECURITY COMMITTEE REPORT

For the year ending June 30, 2014, total collections for Road Users’ Fee amount to
Php2, 652,306.00 and for Road Assessment Fee the amount is Php4,087,930.00. As
part of the Security Committee’s confribution on the effori of the club to reduce
operating costs, the number of security guards was reduced from 37 to 27 guards
without offecting the security services for the Club. Total savings for the Club is
equivalent to Php1,617,168 per annum.

For security purposes, the Security Committee initiated the repair of our perimeter
fence at the back of Green Mo. 3 South Course and was completed this year. CCTV
cameras were installed in the Locker Attendonts’ area inside the Men's Locker Room SGV
and at the hallway of the Men's and Ladies’ locker rooms for security monitoring. s
Building a better
w::-rhlrrr.] world
The Security Committee vows to ensure the safety of our Members and their Guests

and the strict implementation of Valley Golf rules and regulations.

12 Annual Report 2015-2016 Annual Report 2015-2016 13
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INDEFENDENT AUMTORS" REPORT

The Members and the Board of Dhreciors
Walley Golt & Country Club, Ine.

Report on the Financinl Statements

W have audited the accompanying financial statements of Valley Golf & Couniry Club, Inc.

{1 poaprofit erganieaiion), which comprise the sintenwents of financial posiion as at June 30, 2006 and

2001 3, and the statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
members” equity and statements of cash Mows for cach of the three vears i the period ended
June 300, 2006, amd & summary of significant accouniing policies and other explanatory information.

Management s Hesponsibiline for the Fironcial Siatemenis

Management & respongible for the preparation and fair presentation of these lnancial statements i
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such intermal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
froan material masstatement, whether due to frawd or ermor,

Arditors * Responsibility

Our responsibility i 10 express on opinion on these fimancial staternents based on our audits. We
conducted our audits m accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfiorm the audit 1o obiain reasonable
assurance aboul whether the financial statemients are free from maternial mosstalement.

An sudit involves performing proceduress o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the Mnancial siatements, The procedures selected depend on ihe audiior’s judgment, mcluding the
assessment of the rizks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether dug to frowd or
crror. [n making those sk assessments, the auditor considers intemal conirol relevant o the enity’s

prepartion and far presentation of the finoncial statements i order 1o design audit procedures 1hat ane

appropriate in the circumsiances, bat not for the purpose of expressing on opimon on the effectivencss
of the entity"s internal control,  An audil also includes evaluating the appropriatensss of accounting
policies used and the ressonablencss of pocounting estimates made by management, os well as
cvaluating the overall presentation of the financial siatemienis.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obiamed is sufficient and appropriaie to provide a basis for

our wudit opmion

Annual Report 2015-2016
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In our opanion the financial stntemems present Gairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Valley Golf & Country Cheb, Inc. as at June 30, 2016 and 2015, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2006 in accordance with Philippime
Financial Reporting Standards

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenoe Hegulations 1520110

Cir apdits were conducied for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial stalemenis
taken as a whole, The supplementary information required under Bevenue Regulations 15-20010 in
MNote 28 o the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing wath the Bureaw of Intemal
Revenue and 15 not a required part of the basic imancial seatements, Such information is the
responsibility of the managenient of Valley Golf & Country Club, Ine. The mformution has been
subpected to the audiing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial stawements. [n our
opinion, the mformation is fairly stated ool material respects m relation b the basic Gnancial
statements taken as o whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYOD & OO,

Jeus P €

Joge Pepato E. Zaban 1]

Fariner

CPA Certificate Mo, 85501

SEC Accreditation Mo, 0328-AR-3 (Group A),
May 1, 2015, valid uninl Apnil 30, 2018

Tax Idemtification Mo, 102-100-830

BIE Accreditntion Mo, (E-00 | R-60-200 5,
February 27, 2005, valid uniil February 26, 2018

PTRE Mo, 5321714, January 4, 2006, Makati City

August 31, 2006
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Monprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Monprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

June 3 Years Ended June 30
2016 20135 2016 2015 2014

ASSETS REVENUES

Members” dues F52224,.200 P32031.320 BS1LE5048
Current Assels ;i : ’
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P22,029,184 RI3912,176 Green fees (Note 17) _ 17,291,914 |H~3E:*4-3 Ii 3!.?13.1 T2
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 10,696,986 13.665.396 .-hi.L-ssmL'ilﬂ for road mainlemance T.543,541 -E:.E..:.’.LH‘:_I. 7126, 183
Other current assets (Note 6) 5,654,608 6,814,269 LEsals (Hote 18] GAZLLL GelZN0. 513315
Total Current Assets AK,380,778 14,391 841 AT AT A IR ?,qu.mn

Patronage fees 4,022,230 3928 102 JRETT 623
Noncurrent Assets Concessionaires” fees (Moge 19) 3,123,286 3. 046,363 3,096,166
Property and equipment (Note 7) 221,472,751 225247 385 Service charge on playing gucsis 2,991,810 2.A467,287 3,709,040
Investment properties {Note &) 11,081,280 13,840,220 Golf cart storage 2313419 2.199.474 2.084,265
Trust fund (Note 9) 4.262.495 3.821.187 Miscellaneous income (Note 20) 14,133,825 B.173.506 6,701,883
Deferred income tax asset {Note 24) 3,410,425 3,529,552 115.256,576 108420338 113,836,695
Cther nomcurrent assets (MNobe 10 621,122 3722019
Total Noncurrent Assets 243,848,073 250,160,363 COST AND EXPENSES

Cost of services (Mote 21) 695, 169 103, 550 589 G1 379620
TOTAL ASSETS P182,228 851 PIR4 553 M4 Creneral and sdmimistrative {Mote 22) 16,792,915 19164, TG 19057 584

113488074 122695305 110437, 204
T ; et S = EXCESS (DEFICIENY) OF REVENUES OVER
AR R L b L i R, EXPENSES BEFORE INCOME TAXES L.768.502  (14.274,967) 3.399 491
Corrent Liahilities
@ Trade and odher !\u}'abla:ﬁ (Mot 11) PO649.272 P11 1ML 2R3 PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME

Members” deposits and others (Mobe 12) T.570,493 6,381,197 TAXES (Moie 24 &1 380 [OOETY (2.7123TH
Short-term loans (Note 25) 2,500, M 5,500,000
Membership dues paid in advance (Mote 13) 4,812,886 4.6%6,172 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
Payable to a contractor (Note 14) 4,513,504 4,523,504 OVER EXPENSES PL2IS113  (P14.0184.9200  P6111LS6E
Accrued provision for probable clamms (MNote 15) 1,019,740 10149, 740
Total Current Liabilities 30,075,895 33,310,896 T e T B
Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred incoms tax habality (Mote 24) 34,194 2,113,567
Retirement benefit obligation (Mote 26) 12,222 847 V0075, T35
Total Moncurrent Liabilities 12,257,041 12,189,305
Aembers” Equity { Mode 16)
Capital stock 14,337,004 14,337,000
Contributions in excess of par value 201,403,972 201,403,972
Accumulated excess of revenues over expenses 24,154,943 23,311,031
Total Members" Equity 130 805915 239 052 D03
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS® EQUITY F2I82,228,851 P284,552,.204

Sont crowpen g valer I Financiol Shntveeeed
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Monprofit Organization) (A Monprofit Drganization)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS® EQUITY
Years Ended June 30 Years Ended June 30
2016 2015 2014 016 015 2014
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER CAPITAL STOCK (Mate 16)
EXPENSES FL2IE, 113 (P14.184 900  P6111.568 [ssued and outstianding:
TR e R % Balance ot beginning of year FI4.292,000 PI4 195,000  PL4, 193,000
s st el A e e Issuance of shares 45,000 99,0100 2
b ﬁ_w'r:m:”:w:l;‘ 4 bl i Balance at end of year 14337000 14202000 14,193,000
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined Subscribed: . .
mn':ﬁ[ 4]h|1gﬂllﬂ1l :N(ﬂﬂ‘ 2{.] {1143?.-?&3} I':I.l.‘IEI-F.{!-ﬂ-' ..rlr'r"..'ﬁlﬂ H\ﬂlﬂ"l_'..":..'- |.t.|. |.'H.'.g||:|‘l1ng U‘F 'i'lnﬂll 45.[".”] qc.".[“.l 0 .r.m:"”
Income tax effect 2,113,567 (2000.582)  (112.985) ST = 2 ;
(374.201) _ 4.668,025 63,633 Share issunnces (45,0040) (99,000}
o ——— s Balance at end of year - 45,00 053, (M)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) PB4AG12 (FO5168095)  P63T75.500 14,337,000 14,337, (M) 14,253 (W)
T aKCOmpPOYIng Noves o Finasaial STanesem, CONTRIBUTIONS IN EXCESS OF PAR
VALUE
Balance at beginning of year 201,403,972 200258972 Z00L25H ST
Premium on shares issued = I, 185,060 E
Balance at end of vear 201,403,972 201,403,972 200,258,972
ACCUMULATED EXCESS OF REVERNUES
DVER EXPENSES (Mote 16)
Balances at beginning of year 23.311,031 32 E27.926 26,452,425
(O] Comprehensive income (loss): (O]
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses L2ZIE 013 (14,184,520 6 111,868
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
benefit obligation - net of tax (374,201 dAGE 25 263633
Todal comprehensive income (loss) 43,912 (9. 516,595) 6,375,501
Balance ai end of year 24,154,943 23,311,031 32 82T 026
TOTAL MEMBERS® EQUITY P2YO.R95.915 P239.052,003 P247.3178.8958
S TR Yaes B Frauracial Staements
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Nonprofit Organization) (A Monprofit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Yoears Ended Jane M

2016 1% Hil4 I. Corporate Information
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AMCTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) of revenuss over expenses before Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. (the Club) was organized in the Philippinés and registered with
T LR PLT768.502  (P14.274.967) P3.399.401 the Philippine Sccurities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 14, 1958 as a nonprofit

Adjustmenis for:
Deprecrahion and amartization (Notes 21 and 22) 16,507,221 16, 2019 H=lh B, 260 5]
Loss on write-odl off

organization for a term of 50 years up to 2008, The Club’s corporate life was extended for another
50 years from May 15, 2008 as confirmed and ratified by the stockholders on November 15, 2007

Inventory (Nete 21 1,435,341 and was subsequently approved by the SEC on April 29, 2008,
Fropeny and equipment (Mote 22) 17, vy B0 G23.026
Interest expense (Mote 22) 133,083 SlEI4 243,333 The primary purpose of the Club is to foster and promote the game of golf and operate and
:I_ﬂ'_:ﬂ"-‘-i iMITlIt:iHﬁt 20 e ELR LY (142,797} (123.147) maintain a golf course and country club and, generally, to do and perform all such acts and things,
rin om sale of property ond equipment = net =P ; R : ’ : :
(Nokes 7 and 20) AT (418.200) ) Tdﬁ:.;m sn.f_ch_pm'-m as are ordinarily done, performed and exercised by social and athletic
Provesson for impainmenl osses on receivabies Clubs and associanions.
(Moge X2 - 303607 GE_290 : 3 ! - - ; .
Thpcrating income belore working capital changes 1,051,773 3746976 . TI5.057 The registered office of the Club, which 15 also ats principal place of business, 15 located at
Diecrense (mcrese) in; Dom Celso 5, Tuason Ave,, Antipolo City,
Trade and othser receivahblies 1 96R.052 (2.6 14.083) [ Bk BT
Other curment agsets (667,783) (2,362.063) (1,011.601) The Club's Board of Directors (BOD) approved the issuance of the financial statements on
Inerease [decrease] m: .-"o.uguﬂ 11. 016
Trade nnd other payables (2500071 587,385 (5434, 2700 frrind i
Members” deposits amd others 1,089, 2546 (3,208, 295) (418, 7450
Membership dues paid in advince BiET14 (934520 G, 25 1
Retirement benefit obligation {340,659) 3. 158,058 A50, 743 2. summary of Significant Accounting Policy
Met cash generabed [rom (used n) opermtions 1L.T17.222 [TH2,=d4) 680, 332
Inerest peceived Bl 064 113363 121,48 Basis of Preparation
L';um' pax . 2 e {133,083) '{ﬂ't"i’ :i':;;i% The fnancial statemnments of the Club have been prepared umder the historical cost basis. The
@ ek BAIT) Rokx I {sedt 0] Dpersiiag Acivniey iLbesn (33,54 L2 L financial statements are presented i Philippine Peso, which i the Club’s functional and ()}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES FII'l‘.“.'--L"!'ﬂEl!il.'l-n CLITERCY.
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment (Mobe T) Q8274938 R} O
Additions o Statement of Compliance
T&Emﬂiﬁ:ﬂmt {oke:7) I:E;:‘ﬁ: (13.020,592) '”‘ﬁ”'"'u?' The financial statements of the Club have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Srends e - Rv:purlipg Standards (PFRS)L PERS also includes Philippine Accounting Sl;mdu_n]:-' (PAS) and
CHBET BOBCUTTERE G5 {98,436) (2.219.326) (222.316) Philippine Interpretation based on the International Finaneial Reporting Interpretations Committee
st fund ST . (4,009) _ {4.363) (IFRIC) interpretation as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council.
Metd cnsh Nows asedd in imeﬂlinﬂ_ aclivilies 1!-[3,1‘&‘5_: {14,943 927} (0] B, | Doy
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures _ _
Payments of shon-term loans (Mote 25) {3,000, 000) {3 SODL00K The sccounting policies adopted are consestent with those of the previous financial year except for
Procecds from: the following amended PFRS and (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations [based on [FRIC
Shori-term loans - LR ELELE ] interpretations] which were adopted as of July 1, 2016, Adoption of these amendments 1o PFRS,
lssuance of stock = 1,140,000 = PAS and Philippine Interpretations did not have any significant effect to the Club,
Wit cach lows from {used in) fimancing acivites {3,000, 001y o, 15 0 {3 500 KKy
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ¢ Amendments to PAS 19, Defined Benefit Plans: Emploves Contribiitions
ANDCASH EQUIVALENTS B 17008 (11,587 470) 1.2158,628 #  Annual Imprm-l;nu:nts. to PFRSs 2000 - 2012 f}f‘lﬁ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . . ! »  PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesring Condition
AT BECINNING OF YEAR 13,912,176 2AT04 =4,:81.018 =  PFRS 3, Business Combimanons - Aeconiing for Confimgent Consideration in a Business
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AR
AT END O} YEAR ‘F‘I.]_.I}I'L 184 PI39121TH P25 A99 640

s PFRS B, Operaring Segrinis - Aggregation of Operafing Segrneis avd Recorciliation of
the Towal of the Beportable Segments " Assels fo e Enlity s Assets

S ocoowmypring Noafer I Firanciol Sotemonly
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* PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation
Method - Proportionare Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation and Amartization
s PAS M, Related Parly Disclosures - Key Managemeni Personsiel
* Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle
*  PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceprions for Joint Arrangements
= PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurenenit - Porifolio Exception
= PAS 30, fnvesiment Property

Standards Issued But Mot Yet Effective
The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not vet effective, up to the date of Bsuance of

the Company's linancial statements are listed below, The Club intends 1o adopt these standards
when they become effective. Adoption of these standards and interpretations are not expected to
have any impact significant impact on the financial statements of the Club.

Mo definite adoption date prescribed by the SEC and Financial Reporting Standards Council
(FRSC)
s Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

Effective January 1, 20016

# PFRS 10, Consolideted Finonciol Stotements, amd PAY 28, Tnvesiments i dssoclafes and
Jaimt Ventures - fivestment entities: Applving the consolidation Exception (Amendnents)

# PAS 17, Separate Finoncial Statemienis - Equity. Method s Sepovate Financial Statemenis

fAmendmenis)

PFRS 11, Joimt Arvargerments = Acconmling for Acguisitions of Inferests (Amendrenis)

PAS |, Presemtation of Financial Statements - Diselosure Initiative {Amendmenis)

PAS 14, Reglatory Deferval Accounis

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Beaver Plants

Aceeptable Methods of Depreciation and Amaortization {Amendmenis)
*  Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012 - 2015 cycle)

# PFRS 3, Now-ciirvent Assels Held for Sale and Discortinved Operations - Changes i
Methods of Disposal

# PFRS 7, Financial Instrinnents: Disclosires = Sevvicing Confracts

= PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Intevim Financial
Statemeints

= PAS 19, Emplovee Benefits - regional market issie regavding discount rate

&  PAS 34, Tverin Fivancial Reporting - disclosure of iformation ‘elsewdiere in the interin
Sfinancicel report’

Effective January 1, 2018
s  PFRSQ, Flanelal Instruments

In addition, the International Accounting Standards Board has issued the following new standards

that have not vei been adopied locally by the SEC and FRSC. The Club is currently assessing the

impact of these new standards and plans to adopt them on their required effective dates once

adopted locally,

# [nlermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 15, Hevemwe from Contracts with
Crstomiers (effective January 1, 2018)

* |FES 16, Leases {effective January 1, 2019

Annual Report 2015-2016

PAS 16, Property, Plans and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clarification af

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks, Cash equivalenis are shori-term, highly liquid
invesiments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less from dates of acquisition and that are subject 1o insignificant risk of changes in
value,

Fimancial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets in the scope of PAS 39, are classified as either financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments or
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, as appropniate, while financial habilitics are classified as
either financial linbilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities. When financial assets and financial
liabilitics are recognized initially, they are measured at fair valee, plus, in the case of investments
n al FWPL, directly attributable transaction costs. The Club determines the classification of iis
financial assels and fimanceal liabiliics upon initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation al each reporting date.

All regular way purchases and sales of lnancial assets are recognized on the rade date, which 15
the date that the Club commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales arc
purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery of assetz within the penod generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Club's financial instruments are of the nature of loans and receivables and other financial
liabilities. As of June 30, 20016 and 20035, the Club has no financial assets and liabilities at FVPL,
AFS financial assets, and HTM investments,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable pavmients that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR} method, less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are integral part of the EIR and transaction cosis.
Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income when the loans and receivables are
derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process, Loans and receivables are
classified as current assets when it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the
balance sheet date or within the normal operating cvele whichever is longer. Otherwise, these are
classificd as noncurrent assets.

This accounting policy applies to the Club's ‘cash and cash equivalents®, ‘trade and other
receivables” and “trust fund”,

Cher financial Nabilivies

This category pertains to issued financial labilities or their components that are neither held for
trading nor designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability and contain contraciual
obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or to settle the obligation other
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
own equity shares.
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All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received
less directly attnibulable debt issuance cosiz. Debi izsuance costs are amoriized using the EIR
method and unamortized debi issuance costs are included and offset against the related carrying
value of the loan in the balance sheet.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount afier
deducting from the instrument, as a whole, the amount separately determined as the fair value of
the liability component on the date of issue.

Adfier initial recognition, other Mnancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amorized cost
using the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into accoumt any discount or
premium on the issue and fiees that are integral part of the EIR.

When a loan is paid, the related unamortised debt issuance costs at the date of repayment are
charged against current operations. Gains or losses are recognized in statement of income when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process,

This accounting policy applies primarily to the Club’s ‘trade and other payables’, *members’
deposit and others” and “short term loans®.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial azseis) is derecognized when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

# (he Club refains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, bul has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through® arrangement;
i

# fhe Club has iransferred iz righis to receive cash flows from the asset and either {(a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
T

Where the Club has transferred iz nights to receive cash flows from an assel and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Club’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing imvolvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset 15 measured
al the lower of the onginal carrving amount of the assel and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Club could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a
cash-seitled option or similar provizion) on the iransferred asset, the extent of the Club’s
continuing mvolvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Club may repurchase, except
that in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an
assel measured at fair value, the extent of the Club's continuing involvement is limited to the
lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the oplion exercise price.
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Financial liahidities
A financial liabiliy s derecognized when the obligation under the Lability is discharged or
cancelled or has expired.

Where an existing financial hiability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing Lability are substantially modified; such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability and the difference in the respective carmying amounts is recognized in the statement of
income,

Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is the price that would be received o sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a hability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

o [nthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
# In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous markel for the assel or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Club,

The fair value of an assel or a liability s measured using the assumplions that market pariicipants
wikild use when pricing the assel or lability, assuming that markel paricipants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another markel participant that would use the assel in its highest and besi use.

The Club uscs valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available (0 measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categonized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that 15 significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilitics

# Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the  fair
value measurement 5 directly or mdirectly observable

» Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the  fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Club determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Club has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Club assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
o be impaired if, and only if, there is ohjective evidence of impairment as & result of one or more
events that has occurred afier the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and thai
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the borrower or a group of borowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, defaull or delinquency in interest or principal pavments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaulis,

Assets carried ar amortized cost

The Club first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group
of flinancial assets with similar credit nsk characteristics and that group of fnancial assels s
collectively assessed for impairment, Assets that are imdividually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carmied at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss 15 measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated futore cash fows (excluding future. credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s onginal EIR {i.e., the EIR
computed al initial recognition}. The carrving amount of the asset shall be reduced either direcily
or through the use of an allowance account, The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the
statement of income. The asset, together with associated allowance accounts, is written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss 15 reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an imparment loss s
recoenized in the statement of income o the exient that the carmving value of the assel does nol
exceed its amortized cost al the reversal date.

Aszets carvied al cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unguoted equity instrument has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference betwéen the assel’s carrying amount
ad the presemt value of estimated future cash ows discounted at the current market rate of returm
for a similar financial asset.
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Offzetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets amd financial habilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assel and settle the liability

simultaneously. The Club assesses that it has currently enforceable nght of offset if the nght s
nol contingent on a fulure event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event
of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Club and all of the counterpariies,

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except for lond, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, iFany. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value,

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises iz purchase price, including import duties,
non-refundable taxes, estimated costs of dismantlement or restoration and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment when the recognition criteria
are mel. Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been pul info operalions,
such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to the statement of
income in the period when the costs are incurred.

In siuations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expendiures have resulted in an
increase in the fulure economic benefits expected (o be obained from the use of an fmem of
property and equipment beyvond its onginally assessed standard of performance, the expendilures
are capitalized as additional costs of property and equipment. The carrying amount of the replaced
part regardless of whether the replaced part had been depreciated separately is derecognized if an
entity recognizes in the carrving amount of an item of properly and equipment the cost of a
replacement for part of the item. IF it is nod praciicable for an entity (o determing the carrying
amount of the replaced part, it may use the cost of the replacement as an indication of what the
cost of the replaced part was at the time it was gcquired or constructed.

When each major inspection is performed, its cost 15 recognized in the carrying amount of the item
of property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are salisfied.

Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item shall be depreciated separately,

Drepreciation is compubed on a straight-line basis over the following estimabed vseful lives of the
assels:

Category Number of Years
Land improvements 3-50
Building and sirectures =50
Ground tools and services machinery and equipment =10
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10
Transporiation equipment 5

Construction in progress 15 staled at cost, Depreciation is compuled when the construction s
completed.
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The remaining useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically 1o ensure that
the periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expecied pattern of economic
benefits from items of property and equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation
and any allowance for impairment loss-are removed Irom ihe accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is credited to or charged against current operations. Impairment losses of items of property
and equipment, related claims for or payments of compensation from third parties and any
subsequent purchase or construction of replacement assets are separate economic events and are
accounted for separately.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the
assel (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of
the azset) is included in the statement of income i the year the assel 5 derecognized.

Investment Properiics

Investment property, which consists of land and building held for rentals or capatal appreciation or
both. Excepl for land, invesiment propeny s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment in value for building. The cost of the investment property comprises its purchase price
and other direct costs. Depreciation on the building is computed on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of 20 years. Land is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment.

Transfers are made 1o investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of
owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction
of development. Transfers are made from investment property when there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencemznl of development with a view
o -sale. These transfers are recorded using the carryving amount of the investment property ol the
date of the change in use,

Gains or losses resulting from the sale of an investment property are recognized in statement of
inCame.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and
no fulure cconomic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or
disposal of an investment property 158 recognized in the statement of income in the year of
retirement or disposal,

Computer Software

Computer software, included as part of *Other noncurrent assets” is initially recognized at cost.
Following initial recognition, compuiter software is carmied at cost, less accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment in value.

Computer sofiware is amorised on a sttught-line basis over its estimated useful economic life of
three (3) vears and- assessed for impairment whenever there 15 an indication that the imMangible
asset may be impaired. The amortization commences when the computer software is available for
use. The period and method of amortization for the computer software are reviewed at each end of
the reporting period. Changes in the estimated useful life s accounted for by changing the
amorization pericd or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amaortization expense is recognized in the statement of income in the expense category consistent
with the function of the computer software.
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Trust Fund
Trust fund pertains to short-term deposits for which the use is restricted to the daily operations of
the Club,

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Club assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a nonfinancial asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for a
nonfinancial asset is required, the Club makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount.
A nonfinancial asset’s estimated recoverable amount is the higher of a nonfinancial asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an
individual nonfinancial asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other nonfinancial assets or group of nonfinancial assets, in which case
the recoverable amount 15 assessed as part of the cash generating unit to which it belongs. Where
the carrving amount of a nonlinancial assel exceeds s estimated recoverable amount, the
nonfinancial assel is considered impaired and & wrilten down to iz estiimated recoverable amount.
In aszessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are discounted o their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the nonfinancial asset. Fair value less costs to sell is the amount
obiainable from the sale of a nonfinancial asset or cash-generating unit in an arm's-length
transaction, adjusted for incremental cosis that would be directly attributable to the disposal of the
nonfinancial asset.

Impairment [osses of continuming operations are recognized in the stalemenis of income in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired nonfinancial asset, except for any
property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In
this case, the impairment is also recognized in other comprehensive income to the amount of any
previous revaluation.

An assessment is made al each reporting date as to whether there 15 any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the nonfinancial asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying
amount of the asset 5 creased 1o s estimated recoverable amount. That inereased amount
cannat exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statemenits of income.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to, directly or indirectly, control or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions,
Partics are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties include members of key management personnel including
directors and officers of the Club and close members of the family and companies associated with
these individualzs, In considering each possible related entiiy relationship, attention is directed to
the substance of the relationship and nod merely ihe legal form.

Capital Stock
Capital stock is determined using the nominal value shares that have been ssued. When the Club

issucs more than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class of stock and
number of shares issued.
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Contribution in Excess of Par Value
Amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as an additional paid-in capital.
Additional paid-in capital also arises from additional capital contribution from the members.

Revenue is recognized (o the extent that it iz probable that the economic benefits will flow (o the
Club and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the pavment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Membership Dhives

Members® dues are recognized monthly as the fees become due. Any advance payments for
membership dues are recognized as a hability and credited o “*Membership dues paid in advance”
account in the statement of linancial position.

Crreen Fees
Green fees are income generated from use of the golf course by member’s puest and walk-in
customers. Revenues are recorded when the related services are rendered.

Assessmoni for Rood Malntenonce
Assessment for road maintenance is income generated from the use of the Club’s main road, Don
Celso 5. Tuason Avenue, Revenues are recorded upon billing to members.

Remals and Convessionaires ™ Fees
REentals and concessionaires’ fees are recognized when the service is rendered in accordance with
the terms of the agreements entered into by the Club,

Transfer Fees
Transfer fees are recognized when the shares of stocks have been transferred.

Patronage Fees
Patronage fees are consumables that members are entitled to for the consumption of food provided
by the club’s concessionaire. These are recognized monthly as the fees expire.

Serwvice Charge on Plaving Guests
service charges on plaving guesis are ransaction fees or cash requirements in order to process the
Club’s playing rights to outside individuals. These are recognized when the service is rendered.

Golf Cart Storage
Golf cart storage is income generated from the safekeeping and storage of member’s golf carts.

Tnrerest Income
Interest is recognized as income when it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the
assel.

Miseelaneous Income

Mizcellaneous income are recognized as the earning process oocurs and collection is reasonably
assured,
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Cost and Expenses

Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decreases of assets or incurrence of habilities that result in decreases in equity, other
than those relating 1o distributions (o equity participants. Cost and expenses are recognized when
ncurred,

Crirrent INcame fax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expecied o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorimies, The ax rates and tax
laws used o compuie the amount are those that are enacted or subsianiively enacted at the
reporting date,

Deferred income Kax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences
at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrving amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognired for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* where the deferred income tax lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
pssel of liabiliy in a tramsaction that s not a business combination and, at the tme of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss; and

o inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in foreign subsidiarics
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foresecable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
of unused tax credits in the form of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused tax losses
in the form of net operating loss cammyover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences. and the camry
forward benefit of MCIT and NOLCO can be ulilized except:

o where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference anises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a busingss
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable income or loss; and

 in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in foreign
subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

The carryving amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available 1o allow
all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets
are reassessed al each reporting date and are recognesed (o the extent that if has become probable
that future taxable income will allow the deferred income tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the year when the asset is realized or the liability 18 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substanfively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to offset current income tax assets against cumrent income tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. Income tax
relating to ilems recognized directly in egquity 5 recognized directly in other comprehensive
incoame and not in the statements of income.

Vahie-added Tax (VAT)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized, net of the amount of VAT except:

*  where the VAT incurred in the purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as pari of the cost of acquisition of the  asset
or as part of the expense itemn as applicable; and

s  where receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT inclheded.

Output VAT is presented net if input VAT and the resulting payable is included as pant of *Trade
and other pavables” account 1o be remitted to applicable taxation authonties. When the resulting
oulcome i5 a net inpul VAT, it is included as part of *Ciher current assets” account, which can be
recovered as tax credit against future tax liability of the Club.

Deferred input WYAT represemts input WAT on purchase of capital goods exceeding one million
pesos, The related input WAT is recognized over five (3) years or the useful life of the capital
goods, whichever is shorter.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, of contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
armngement is dependent on the use of a specific assel or assets or the armangement conveys a
right 1o use the assel or assets even if that right & not explicitly specified in an arrangement,

Club ax a Lessor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the asset are classified as operating lease. Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the leaze term. Indirect cost incurred by the lessor in negotiating and
arranging for an operating lease is added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized
as expense over the lease term.

Retirement Benefit Obligation

Dfined Bewellt Plan

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the financial reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if
any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset
ceiling is the present value of any economic benefils available in the form of refunds from the plan
of reductions in fulure contributions o the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuanally determined using the
projected unit credi method.
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Diefined benefit costs comprise the following:

*  Bervice cost

#  DMet interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset

» Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routing settlements are recognized as expense in statement of income. Past service costs are
recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are caleulated
periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Met interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the penod in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applving the discount rate based on government bonds 1o the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Met interest on the net defined benefit liability or assel s recognized as expense OF income in
statement of income,

Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the assel ceiling (excluding net inlerest on defined benelit Lability ) are recognized
immediately in OCl in the period in which they arise. Re-measurementis are nol reclassified o
statement of income in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assels that are beld by a long-term emploves benefil fund or qualifying insurance
policies, Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Club, nor can they be paid directly to
the Club. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using
a discount rate that reflects both the nsk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or
expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the
settlement of the related obligations), IF the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present
value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is
limited 1o the present value of economic benelits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in fulure contribulions 1o the plan.

The Club’s right 10 be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required 1o settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as o separate asset al fair valee when and only when
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Provisions

Provizsions are recopnized when the Club has a present obligation (legal and constructive) as a
pesull of a past event; it is probable that an ouiflow of resources embodying economic benefiis will
be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are made by discounting
the expected future cash Mows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the fime
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Where the Club expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating 1o any provision is presented in the statement of income, net of anv reimbursement.
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Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are ool recognized in the hnancial statements. These are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

Events After the Reporting Date

Post yvear-end events that provide additional information about the Club’s position at the reporting
date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post yvear-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes (o financial statements when material,

Significant Judgment and Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying hnancial statements o compliance: with PFRS requires
meinagement o make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and the accompanying notes, The judgments and estimates used in the accompanying
financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumsiances
as at the date of the financial statements. Future event may occur which will cause the assumptions
used in armiving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimate are reflected in
the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable. Actual results could differ from
such estimates,

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of folure events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the
circumstance.

Judgments
In the process of applyving the Club’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the fimancial
statements:

G-!'HIHI.‘.' CORMCErT assessnent

The management has made an assessment on the Club’s ability to confinee as a going concern and
is satisfied that the Club has the resources to continue their business for the foresecable future.
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the Club®s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statemenis
continue to be prepared on the going concemn basis.

Determining Functiomal Currency

The functional currency of the Club has been determined to be the Philippine Peso, Based on the
Club’s evaluation, the Philippine Peso is the currency that represents the primary economic
environment in which the Club operates and it 5 the currency that mainly influences the
underlying transactions, events and conditions relevant 1o the Club.

Classification of Financtal Insiviinheits

The Club exercises judgment in classifyving a financial instrument, or its component parts, on
mitial recognition either as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather
than itz legal form, poverns its classification in the statement of financial position.
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In addition, the Club classifies linancial asseis by evaluating, among others, whether the assel is
quoted or nod inoan active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial assel s
quoted m an-active markel is the determination on whether the quoled prices are readily and
regularly available, and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis.

Operating Lease - Club as Lessor

The Club has entered into commercial property lease on its investment property. The Club
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains
all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the investment property, thus the lease is
accounted for as an operating lease,

Estimales

The key assumptions concerning the fiture and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Extimantivig Allowariee for Impaivment Losses

The Club maintains an allowance for impairmient losses on receivables al a level considered
adequate to provide for polential uncollectible receivables, The level of this allowance is evaluated
bv the Club on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the accounts. These factors
include, but are not limited to, the length of the Club’s relationship with members and debtors,
their payment behavior and known market factors. The Club reviews the age and status of
receivables, and identifies accounts that are o be provided with allowance on a continuous basis.

Provisions  for impairment  losses on irade and other receivables amounted o mil,
P04 million and P01 million in 2006, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Trade and ofher receivables,
net of allowance for impairment losses as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, amounted to #10.7 million
and #13.7 million, respectively (see Note 5).

Estimaring Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and fnvestmemnt Properties

The Club estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties based on
the period over which the Club’s property and equipment and investment properties are expected
o be available for use. The estimated vseful lives of property and equipment and invesiment
properties are reviewed periedically and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates
due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on
the use of these assets. In addition, the Club’s estimation of the useful lives of property and
equipment and investment propertics are based on collective assessment of industry practice,
internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible that the future results
of operations could be matermally affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in
factors mentioned above.

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, there were no changes made in the estimated useful lives of the
Club’s property and equipment and investment properties.

The net carrying amount of property and equipment as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounted to
P221.4 million and P225.2 million, respectively (see Note T).

The net carrying amount of investment propertics as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounted to
P11.1 million and #13.8 million, respectively (see Note 8).
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Estimativg Usefold Life of Computer Soffware

The estimated useful life used as a basis for amortizing the computer soflware cosls was
determined on the basis of management’s assessment of the penod within which the benefits of
the asset are expected to be realized by the Club.

There were no changes made in the estimated useful life of the Club’s computer software in 2016.

The net camying amount of computer software a5 of June 30, 2006 and 2015 amounted 1o
P4 millon and P0G million, respectively (see Note 10,

Estimating Impairment Losses of Nonfinancial Assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at cach end of the reporting period to
identify indications that property and equipment, investment properties, and computer software
miay be impaired or an impairment loss previously recogniced no longer exists or may be
decreased.

If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
The Club assesses the impairment of assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
ithat the carrying amount of an asset may nod be recoverable. The factors that the Club considers
important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

ia) Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
resulis;

(b} Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

(¢} Significant negative indusiry oF economic trends,

As of June 30, 2006 and 2015, the Club has no accumulated impairment losses on property and
equipment, investment propertics, computer software. The aggregate carrving value of these
nonfinancial assets as of June 30, 2016 and 2005 amounted to P232.9 milhion and #239.7 million,
respectively (see Notes 7, 8, and 10).

Estimating Realizabifity of Deferred Income Tax Assets

The Club reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets at each reporting date and
reduced the amounts to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available o allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

However, there is no assurance that the Club can generate sufficient axable profit to allow all or
part of its deferred taxable assets 1o be utilized.

As of June 30, 2016 and 20135, the Club’s deferred income tax assets amounted to #3.4 million and
P31.5 million, respectively (see Note 24).

As of June 30, 2016 and 2013, the Club’s deferred income tax lability amounted to P34,194 and
P21 million, respectively (see Mote 24).

Temporary deductible differences for which no deferred income tax asset was recognized
amounted to #1899 million and #20.5 million as of June 30, 20016 and 2015, respectively
(5o Mote 24)

Provision and Conlingencies

The Club is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable costs
for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with its counsel handling the
defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results. In the opinion of
management and its legal counsel, the eventual hability under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will
not have a material or adverse effect on the Club’s financial position and results of operations. It is
possible, however, that the future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in
the estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings.

The Club has accrued provision for probable claims amounting to #1.0 million as of June 30, 2016
and 201 5 (sec Mote 15),

Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Dternining Reliremmemnt Benelit Expevise 2016 2015
The cost of defined benefit pension plans and the present value of the pension obligation are Cazh on hand P95, (W) PS5, 00K
determined using actuarial valvations. The actuarial valuation involves making various Cash in banks 20,280,229 12,173,603
assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases, Shori-lerm invesimenis 1.653,055 | 643,573

turnover rate and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlyving
assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive 1o changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the
appropriale discount rate, management considers the market yvields on Philippine  governmeni
bonds with terms consistent with the expected emplovee benefit pavout as at end of the reporting
periods. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables and is modified
accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases and pension
increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the Philippines.

Retirement benchit expense amounted to B1LT million, P32 mollion and P24 mellion i 2006,

2015 and 2014, respectively. Retirement benefit obligation amounted to ®12.2 million and
#10.1 million as of June 30, 2006 and 2015 {see Mote 26).
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F21,029,184 213,912,176

Cash in banks camn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-lerm investments have
varying maturitics of up to 90 davs and eam interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income eamed amounted to PO.2 mullion, PO million and B0 mallion in 2006, 2005 and
20104, respectively (see Mote 200,
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Trade and Other Receivables
2016 2015
Members F11,458.331 P11.930,080
Subscription - 1,210,000
Others 1,386,745 2,893 487
12875076 16,033,567
Less: allowance for impairment losses 2 178,090 2.368.171
B10,6596,986 P13,665,3%%

Prepayments pertain to prepaid taxes and licenses, prepaid medical expenses and prepaid
InSurance premiums.

CWT is the tax withheld by the withholding agents from payments to the Club which can be
applied against the income tax pavable.

Chers pertaim 1o advances on purchazses and deferred imput VAT,

Eecevables from members, which are due 30 days after billing date, are nominterest-bearing and

constitute a lien on the members” shares,

Subscription receivable pertains to the additional subscription of shares which are due in one yvear.

Other receivables consist mainly of the share of the homeowners for the sécurity serviees and
electricity of the access roads around the Club, advances made o officers amd emplovees and

receivables from concessionaires and various organizalions,

As of June 30, 2016, the aging analysis of trade and other receivables are as follows:

2006 2015
Mot more than 30 davs outstanding P1.463,709 P4.957,793
Beyond 30 days outstanding:
31-60 days 3628586 1.521,007
61-90 days 1,947,012 844,972
Over 90 days 5,835,769 8,709,785
P12575.076 Pl16.033,567
Az of June 30, 20016 and 2015, the movements in the allowance for impairment losses are as
follows:
016 2015
Balances at beginning of vear FLI6K.1TI F1.974.564
Provisions for impairment losses (Mofe 22 - 393 607
Write-off 190,081 .
Balances at end of year 2,178,090 R2.168,171
6. her Current Assets
016 2015
Supplies inventory 1,321,305 P2,567,434
Prepayments 2,306,767 2,356,299
Creditable withholding tax (CWT) MI5.395 444,555
Cithers 1121141 1445931
P5.054.608 PR 14,269
Supplies inventory include gasoline and oil stocks, grounds materials, office and stationeries, shop
and maintenance supplies and construction materials,
Annual Report 2015-2016
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Fully depreciated equipment still used in operations amounted to P72.3 million and P67.8 million
as of June 30, 2016 and 20135, respectively.

On January 2016, the Club sold a parcel of land amounting to P28 million. The cost of the land is
P11.331, resulting to a gain of BX,7 million (see Note 20).

On Movember 2014, the Club entered a maintenance service agreement with MJ Carr Golf
Management, Inc. (MICARR) which resulied to a sale of ground tools and service machinery and
equipment with a book value of ®1.7 million. Proceeds from sale of equipment amounted to
#2.4 million resulting to a gain on sale of #0.4 million {(see Note 20).
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Invesiment Properiies

On May 21, 1989, the members® resolution was amended stating that, “the proceeds of the sale of
any real property of the Club or shares of stock to be used for capital expenditure and other
infrastructure project shall not form part of the Valley Golf Trust Fund. However, any excess
thereof shall form part of the Valley Golf Trust Fund™.

The trust fund account was reported as part of the “noncurrent asset™ portion in the statement of
financial position.

As of June 30, 20016 and 2015, trust fund balance amounted o P4.3 million and P3.8 million,
respectively. Interest income recognized for the trust fund amounted 1o P38.212, P37,238 and
F30.249 in 2006, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Mote 200,

016
MNorth
Clubhouse Land Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning and
end of year BE53, 718,366 BHE. 237 B53. 806,603
Accumulated amortization:
Balances at beginning of year 39,966,383 - 39,966,383
Amortization (Mote 21) 2,758,940 - 2,758,940
Balances at end of year 42,715.323 - 42,725,323
Met book values P10,993,043 PRE.23T F11.081,280
2015
Morth
Clubhouse Land Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning and
end of vear B53.718,366 PER.23T 53,806,603
Accumulated amortization:
Balances at beginning of year 37,207 443 - 37,207 443
Amortization (Mote 21) 2,758,940 2,758,940
Balances at end of year 39,966,383 - 39,966,383
Met book values B13.751.983 P38 237 13,840,220

Rental income from investment property amounted to #0.2 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014
(see Note 18). Direct expenses related to investment properties consist mainly of depreciation
amounting to P28 million in 2016 and 201 3.

The aggregate fair valug of the Club’s properties amounted to P9O.5 million. The fair values of the
Club’s properties were determined on the valuation performed by TCI Top Consult, Inc. on
June 15, 2016, The TCI Top Consalt is an industry specialist in valuing these types of propertics.
The fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Trust Fund

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the members on September 12, 1982 and as provided for in
the Club’s by laws, the trust fund committee 15 empowered to invest the Valley Golff Trust Fund,
which in no case shall be less than the original amount of B3.5 million, in leading universal banks
in the country.

The members’ resolution further siates that all proceeds from future sale of shares and real

property, including all amortizations due on the sale of shares previously sold, shall accrue to the
trust fund and that 85% of the interest mcome of the fund shall be made available for the

maintenance and repair of the golf course. The remaining 15% of said interest income shall acerue

to and form part of the fund.

1), Ddiher Noncurrent Asseis

216 2015

Refundable deposit BA.079. 306 B3,055,331
Computer software - net IB7.637 586,970
Others 154,179 To.TIB
P3.621.122 3,722,019

Refundable deposit pertaing 1o deposits from wlility compamies and MJ Carr. The carmrying
amounts of the deposits are regarded as its amortized cost since the timing of the refund or
settlemient of the deposils could not be reazsonably estimaied

The movement of computer software is as follows:

2016 2015
Cost:
Balance at beginning of vear #2,181.437 B2,156,687
Additions - 24,750
Balance at end of year 1181437 2181437
Accumulated Amortization:
Balance at beginning of year 1,594,467 1,462,108
Amortization (Note 22) 199,333 132,359
Balance at end of year 1.793. 800 |.594.467
Net Book Value BIRT.63T P536.970
11. Trade and Other Payables
2016 2015
Trade 2,078,170 P35, 008,946
Organizations and cooperative 3272824 2011302
Accrued expenses 2,336,748 2210246
Concessionaires 1.105,016 996,818
VAT payable 251,634 418,174
Others 6l)4.880 544,797

9,649,272 B11,190,283

Trade payables are unsecured, noninteresi-bearing and are payable to suppliers within 30 days.
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Accrued expenses are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest.
These pertain to accruals made for outside services, utilitics and other various accruals.  These are
normally settled throughout the next financial vear.

15, Accrued Provision for Probable Claims

Accrued provision for probable claims pertains to the estimated liability to resolve various
probable claims against the Club. Any payment of actual claims against the Club requires the
Payable (o concessionaires and other organizations pertains to collections received by the Club far approval of the BOD,
and on behall of the concessionaires and other organizations,

The information usually required by PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Asseix, 15 not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice the cutcome of these

lawsuits, clums, arbitration and assessments,

Ctther payables mainly consist of tournament deposits and withholding tax payable.

12, Members® Deposits and Others As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, accrued provision for payable claims amounted to #1.0 million.

2016 20135
Cash deposit B4.525,000 B4.385,000 16, Member's Equity
Due 1o Former members 2875493 1LE26, 197
Security deposit 1710, 0H 170,000 Capital Stock
B7.570,493 P63R1, 197
Shangs Amouni
Cash deposit pertains to deposits made by playing guests. Any unpaid liabilities will be deducted - RG-SO L] L
z L T £ : 3 ] ; Common shares - L0 par value
from this account and the excess will be refunded upon resignation of the playing guest. Authorised - 1 900 shares
lssned
Due to former members consist mainly of proceeds from auction sale of shares, pavable to former Balance s beginning of vear 1.588 1,577 FI4.292.000 P14, 193,000
members and other advance payments made by them, Additions during the yeur s 1 45000 29000
Balance ai end of year 1593 1586 14387000 13,292,000
Secunty deposit perfains (o variois deposits réceived by the Club from s concessionaires and Mhﬁgﬂmmhﬁim"w'mﬂr 5 I 45,000 0000
lessee and is o be refunded at the end of their respective agreements., Additions during the year x 5 = 45000
lsuance of shares ifuring the year (5  Qlly {4 0HN) [ AL
- 5 - 45000

1,593 I-ﬁ"«l.i- RFI4 337000 PI4,337,000

13, Membership Dues Paid in Advance

The selling price per share of installment sales is #350,000 for 2016, payable with a down
payment of 830,000 and the balance in 11 equal monthly installments of #30,000 and one final
installment of #20,000, without interest if paid on or before due date. Penalty interest of 2% per
month is charged on any default in installment payment.

This account represents advance collection of monthly membership dues which are applied in the
next financial year.

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, membership dues paid in advance amounted to P4.8 million and

P4.7 mullion, respectively.
Accumulated Excess of Revepues Over Expenses

1016 2015

14, Fayable to 8. Comtractor Accumulated excess of revenues over CXpenses FI7, 188,005 B25.0659 892
This pertains to the payable for the construction of the Club’s main road, Don Celso 5. Tuazon ?;:ﬁ;?ﬁpbr;ﬁtt}:;;;?;b:JI::;;}M i

Avenue with a total amount of P45 million a5 of June 30, 2016 and 201 5. h‘r:hiqun.r:wriu.dr fFH

O January 3, 2012, the parties agreed in principle to settle the debt in exchange of 985 square RcunF::aE;::::l;ge:?I:;:;: (Toaei) oot i = heaeit (2,658.861) {7,526.580)

meters of land belonging to the Club. The market value of the land amounted to #4.9 million. obliagiicn £ (374.201) 4.668.025

(3,033.062) (2,658 861)

P214,154,943 P23.311,03]

AR AR AEHARATAAEE
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7. Green Fees

Green fees are generated from the use of the Club’s golf courses. The Club has two golf courses:
the Morth and South course. The Monh course & open 1o its members, their puests, and walk-in
customers while the South course is open to its members and their guests only,

On July 1, 2003, the Club enteéred into an agreement with Korea Golf & Members Leisure, Inc.
(Eorea Golf) for the use of the Club’s Morh course. The Club also granis Korea Golf the use of its
North Clubhouse office space. The agreement is for a minimum of 4.0 million worth of green fee
coupons a year. Pavments from this agreement would be carmmed and included in the Club’s green
fees upon usage of the Club’s facilities. The agreement is valid until July 1, 2018,

During 2005, ithere was a default io the contract by Korea Golf. They had failed to purchase the
minimum green fees coupons as stated in the contract. The Club rescinded the contract and
forfeited all the payments made by Korea Golf. The green fees from Korea golf amounted to
P02 million and B1.3 million in 2006 and 2015, respectively.

. Rentals
26 2015 2014
Golf carts and lockers B6,600.453 PG, 100,627 #5510,116
Investment property:
Communication cell sile 211,898 212,343 203,199
6,822,351 P63129T0 B5.713.315

Rentals of golf carts are for the use of the golf carts provided by the club for its members. Rentals
of lockers are for the use of the Club’s locker rooms.

The Club leases the north clubhouse’s rooftop to a local telecommunications company to be used
as a cell site under certain conditions. Monthly rental amounts to B15,000, subject to a 4.5%
escalation staring on the fourth wyear. The lease period 5 from Oelober 1, 2007 1o
Seplember 30, 2017, renewable for a period (o be mutually agreed upon by the parties.

Minimum rentals to be collected from the long-term lease are as follows:

2016 2015 2014

Within one year P242.318 P231.883 R221,898
After one vear but more than five 61,239 487273 535,440
More than five years - 183,716
PF303.557 Ll 8 941,054

19 Coneessionaires” Fees

2016 2015 2014

Food and beverage services #21.022.949 2,112,254 B1.917.903
Retail services 821,766 176,966 B51.478
Driving range operalions 278,571 257,143 235,714
Spa and barber shop services - 91,071
PX 123,286 P3.146,363 B3.096,1 66

Concession agreements entered into by the Club are shown below:

Food and Beverage Services

Interpro Food Specialist, Inc., local concessionaire and the Club entered into a concession
agreement wherchy the said concessionaire operates the food and beverage operations of the Club.
The agreement also provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee of 10% of the monthly gross
sales including special functions contracted for the members and guest and 1o purchase one share
of stock. The share of stock is pledged (o the Club which serves as a security deposii to answer for
any damages or expenses incurred. The agreement is for a period of five years from September 1,
2013 up to September 1, 2018, subject to renewal at the option of the Club under such terms and

conditions to be mutually agreed by the parties.

Pacsport Phils, Inc. was awarded the concession to operate a retail sales outlet, inside the
Clubhouse to serve the members, guests and dependents, exclusively. In consideration fior
operating the Shop, the Club charges a basic minimum monthly rental of #65,000 or 15% of their
pross sales per month inclusive of value added tax, whichever s higher. The agreement 18 for a

period of two years from March 135, 20016 up 1o May 14, 2018,

Driving Range Operations

The contract with Benjie Magada for maintenance and operation of the dnving range facility @
covers a pernod of four vears from July 1, 2002 up to July 1, 2016 subject 1o renewal or extension
al the oplion of the Club. In consideration, the concessiopaire will pay the Club a monthly

concession fee amounting o #20,000, subject to 10% increase annually,

200, Miscellaneous Income

2016 2015 2014

Gain on sale of properties (Note 7) #H, 728,634 B418.290

Service fee 038691 1,002,360 2.868,70
Surcharge 910,999 838,117 1,191,545
Pull carts 166,589 300,682 313,508
Interest 157,225 142,797 123,147
Others 3,031,687 5,451,260 2,294 980
P14,133,825 B8, 173,506 B6,791 883

Others mainly consist of venue and room fee, and bingo session net proceeds.
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21. Cost of Services 2016 2015 2014
Creneral and administrative
2016 2015 2004 TNNQ 22):
Outside services P11,849,392 B25,110,709 P11.867,184 Salaries and wages 4,969,836 4,195,362 4,632,654
Personnel cost (Note 23) 21,156,966 31418436 28.159,099 Employee benefits L210,183 3,680,843 3351672
Depreciation and amontization Retirement benefits
(Motes 7, 8, 10} 16,156,146 5,451,358 15,920,761 expense (Note 26) 315,486 836,070 519,435
Utilities 0,019,029 8,907,168 9,103,625 6,505,505 B 732275 §,513,781
Supplics 5901,187 B.936. 376 11,405,280 P217.662.471 P40 150,711 P36,672.850
Repairs and mainienance 2.1TR.TTH 5. K45 463 7.5093,656
Loss on write-off of inventory 1,435,341
Others B.598,332 1461079 6,924,015 24. Income Taxes
BU6,6595, 169 PIO3, 530,589 POl 379,620
The Club’s provision for current income tax in 2016 and 2015 pertains to MCIT.
Others pertain to provision for tournament expenses, insurance and parking fee. :
The compositions of provision for (benefit from) income taxes were:
22 General and Administrative 2016 2015 2014
Current P397.068 P145,758 Pa6d, 384
016 015 2014 Deferred 153,321 {235, 805) (3.176,761)
Personnel costs (Note 23) B6,505,505 8,732,275 P8.513,781 P550.389 (PRO4T)  (P2.712.377)
Taxes and licenses 3953221 3.R66. 497 4,203,638 .
Chitside services 1,730,766 236,294 1.476.305 The reconciliation of imcome computed at the statutory 1ax rales o provision for income fax as
Board members’ meetings 1,223,876 1,195,926 D18,816 shown in the statements of income is as follows:
Bank charges £62.321 T12.533 6496, 826
Supplies 589,473 717,647 705,011 2016 2013 2014
Liilities 584,081 621292 568,805 Income tax computed at
Depreciation and amortization statutory rate P530,551 (P4,282,490) £1,019.847
{Notes 7, &, 10) 351,075 36K 512 337.303 Income tax effects of;
Interest 133,083 910,814 243,333 Expired MCIT 494,185 @
Loss on write-off of property and Mondeductible expenses 43,618 140,313 66,855
equipment 17,06y 58,720 023,026 Interest income subjected o
Provision for impairment losses final tax (24,242) (31,571) (36,944)
on receivables (Note 5) - 393,607 68,290 Movement of unrecognized
Others 842438 690,580 312,360 deferred income tax
#16,792,905 P19,164,716 P19,057,584 assels (493,723) 4,083,701 (3,762,135}
B550,389 (BT} (E2.T12.37TT)

Oiher expenses consist mainly of advertising expenses, prompd pavment discounts, insurance and
nel expenses incurred during tournamenis,

The components of the Club's net deferred income tax asset (liability) are as follows:

2016 2015
. Deferred income tax assets:
4o Lerunes oxty Advanced payments of membership dues and
ah e others 1,443,866 P1.408 852
T 21D e MCIT 1007.210 1,104,327
Sl and wages | PISG00,187  PI606I650  PIS,T07.086 Accrued provision for probable claims 305,922 305,921
Employee benefits 4,224.270 11,055,514 7623071 Allowance for impairment losses =l 710452
e e F3.410.425 F3,520.552
expense (Note 26) 1.332,509 4,301,272 1.528.942 ey
21,156,966 31,418,436 38,139,000
[ T ]
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2016 2015
Deferred income tax lizbility:
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit
obligation P- (P2.113,56T)
Interest income from accrelion (34.194)

(P34,194) (#2,113,567)

Mo deferred income tax assets from the following deductible temporary difference were
recognized as it 18 not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow the benefit
of the deferred income tax assets 1o be utilized:

2016 2015
Retirement benefit obligation #9.735.079 B10,075,738
NOLCO 9,148,565 10,415,441
Interest expense from accretion - 38,204

F18.883,644 P20,52% 388

As of June 30, 2016, unrecognized deferred income tax asset in other comprehensive income
amounted o B2.5 million.

Az of June 30, 20014, the Club hazs NOLCO that ean be claimed as deduction from future taxable
incoma as follows:

Year incurred Avvailable up o Amoint Applied Expired Balance
2015 2016-2018 PIOA15441  BI1.266,876 - P9 145,565

The Club has available MCIT which can be applied to the Club’s future tax liabilitics as follows:

Y ear incurred Available up to MCIT Applied Expired Balance
2013 2014-2016 P494,185 P494,185 P-
2014 201 5-2017 46,384 = = 464,384
2015 2016-2018 145,758 - 3 145,758
2016 2017-2019 397,068 - - 397,068

B1.501,395 = B4 185 BLDOT.210

48
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. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considerad to be related if one party has the ability (o control, directly or indirectly, the
other party of exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decizions, Parties are also considered (o be related if they are subject 1o common control or
common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

Annual Report 2015-2016

A summary of major account balances with related parties follows:

Amsnian

Year Vodumwe Heceivalde Liahbility Terms Conditions

Short term laans from 2016 FX, 00, M F- B2 S, (M0 I wear term, Linsscured
hembers 205 LSRR - PR3, 3000000 imbencst
hearing

Imleres expense on short - 2006 08,554 - - 3% -
term loans from 215 i, 062 = = %%

MMembers

Adbvances to officers W6 - - - 1 vear term Linssoured
and employess 2015 2R3 00k 3 - T inerest
heaming

Shori-term Loans
These represent one-vear loans obtained from Club members, renewable on a yearly basis upon
miuifual agreement of the parties. The Club however has the ophion to preterminate the loan. These

loans bear annual interests of 4% im 20016 and 3% in 2013, The loans are secured by umissued
shares of stock of the Club.

Key Management Personnel Compensation

Compensation of key management personnel amounted to B13 million, #1.2 million and
0.7 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which represent short-term benefits.

Complimentary Club Coupons and House Guests Privileges

Complimentary green fee coupons are given to the BOD and certain officers for distribution o
prospective members and certain guests and friends of the Club. The outstanding green fec
coupons for each fiscal vear are as follows:

2016 2015 2014
Beginning balance 358 434 616
Additions during the year 3,298 3,188 3428
Issuances during the year (3,136} {3,239) (3,605)
Ending balance S50 3ER 439

The amount of green fees charged o playing guest ranges from P625 to P2.536. Green fee
coupons expire after six months,

The Club also authorizes ceriain Club officers to entertain houseguesis and use the Club’s
facilitics free-of-charge.

Non-Paying Members and their sclents
Certain members of the Club and their dependenis are exempl from paying monthly dues.

Retirement Fund

The Club’s retirement fund is being held in trust by a trustee bank. As of June 30, 2016 and 2015,
the fair value of plan assets amounted to #13.1 million and #11.0 million, respectively
(see Mote 26).
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36. Retirement Benefit Obligation Movements in retirement benefit obligation in 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Aot : ; : ; ; 2016 2015
e Club has a funded, non-contributory, defined benefit retirement plan covering all its qualified e e - T
officers and employees. Under the plan, qualified officers and I:I'I'IFI-EJ:;‘L'C'.'{ are E:I:illmi I-;:u:l receive B“I?lm 2 l:u.*gmmng o e 075728 Bl An o
pension benefits on a lump sum basis when they reach the retirement age of 60, With the consent chr::_mmrll I:u:ncl_’ﬁ o 1,657,995 3,137,342
of the Club, an emplovee may elect (o retire. early provided he has rendered at least 20 years of Contributions paid e 5 (1,998.654) (1.998.654)
credited service or at least 15 vears of credited service and at least 30 years old. The projected unit Total amount recognized in OCI 2,487,768 (6,668,507
credit cost method was used to determine the retirement benefit costs and obligation, Balancs st énd of year P11,222.847 E10,075,738
The following tables summarize the components of the retirement benefit cost recognized in the Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation as follows:
statements of income and the retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial
position for the retirement plan. 2016 20135
Balances at beginning of year #21.071.950 P32.064,992
Eetirement benefits expense recognized in the statement of income: Current service cost 1,174,909 1,841,312
Settlement loss - 2388 480
2016 2015 2014 Interest cost 973,524 1.641,728
Serviee cost B1.174.909 Bl E41,312 Bl1O0R a1 Net actuarial loss {(gain) due to:
Senlement loss - 2388480 Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 2 848,282 (2497.617)
Net inlerest cost: Changes in financial assumplions 2027017 (3,243.913)
Interest cost on benefi 1,088,170 Changes in demographic assumpiions = (63,275)
obligation 973,524 1.641.728 Benefits paid from plan assets (2, To0, MMy (11,059,757
Interest income on plan assets (490,438) (714,178) {638, 386) Balances at end of year P215.335,682 P21.071,950
Retirernent benefit expense #1.657.995 P5,157.342 2.358.397
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Re-measurement losses (gains) on defined bencfit obligation recognized under OCI in the
statements of comprehensive income: 2016 2015
Balances at beginning of year P10,996,212 PIB4T9.335
2016 2015 Interest income on retirement plan assets 490,438 TI4,178
Actuarial losses (gains): Actual contributions 1998 654 1998 654
® Experience adjustments P2,848,282 (#2,497.617) Actual return excluding amount included in net ®
Changes in financial assumplions 2.027.017 (3,243.913) interest cost 2,387,531 £63 802
Changes in demographic assumptions - (63.275) Benefits paid {2, 7600, 004Ny (11,059,757)
4,875,199 (5,804,805 Balances at end of year #13.112.835 P10,996,212
Return on plan assets excluding the amount
included in net interest cost (2,387,531) (863.802) Retirement obligation as reported in the statement of financial position:
Re-measurement losses (gains) on defined benefit
ﬂhIiE:&Hu-n P2487,768 (Po,60E607) 2016 2015
Present value of benefit obligation F15.335682 F21,071.950
Cumulative re-measurement effect recoznized in OCL included in the accumilated excess of Fair value of retirement plan asseis al end of year (13,112.835) (10,990, 212)
MEVENUES OVET CAPENSCs: Pi12.2212.847 BLOLOTS, 738
2016 2015
Balances at beginning of year B1658.861 T.326,886
Actuarial loss (gain) 4,875,199 [(5,804,805)
Return on assels excluding amount included in net
interest cosi (2,387.531) (863,802)
Income tax effect (2,113,567) 2,000,582
Total amount I':‘L'DE.I‘IiJ'H.'d in R B3.033.062 P2.658.861
a0 Annual Report 2015-2016 Annual Report 2015-2016 a1
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The major categories of plan assets are as follows: Shown below is the maturity profile of the undiscounted benefit payments:

2016 2015 Expécied benefit

Deposit in banks F12,143 BlO.T12 PANTIETHS
Investment in government securities 7,009 549 6,852 080 2015 B354 402
Diher securities and debt instruments 2,986,000 307,000 20 & e
Shares of stock 2,677,718 3. T8, 720 2017 2.691 657
Accrued interest receivable 113,657 113,888 2018 479 187
Miscellaneous receivable 329,902 - 2009 920 630
FI3.128.960  PI1.012.400 2020-2024 17.871 237

Depasit in banks includes regular savings. Retirement benefit expense from defined benefit retirement plan s actuarially determined using
the projected umil credi method.

Investments in government securities consist of retail treasury bonds that bear interest ranging _ _ .
from 5.0% to 11.1% and will mature on various dates starting July 2013 (o October 2037, The Club’s latest actuanal valuation report was on June 30, 2016. It also expects 1o contribute

A
R0 mullion i 2007,

Other securities and debt instruments pertains to ‘due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas” and *fime
certificate of deposit’,

27, Financial Instroments

Miscellaneous receivable pertains to *dividends receivable” and “due from brokers’,
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement benefit obligations for the The Club’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables, members’ deposit
Club’s retirement plan are as follows: and others, and short term loans, The main purpose of these financial labilities is 1o raise finance
fior the Club's operations. The Club has various financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents,
2016 2015 trade and other receivables and trust fund, which anse directly from its operations,
[nscount rate 37T 4.6%
Future salary increases 1.00%, 3000 The main risks arising from the Club's financial instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk.
Turnover rate 4% at age 1% 6o 14% af age 19 10
1% al age 45 1% at age 45 The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are
@ summarized below. @
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of cach
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting period, Credit risk
assuming all other assumptions were held constant: The Club establishes credin limits at the level of the individual borrower, corporate relationship
and industry sector. Alzo, the Club transacts only with recognized third parties, with no required
Effect o1 collateral.
Increase  defined benefil
{decrease) Obligation Loans and other receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Club’s
[Discount rates +10% (#25,058,941) exposure to bad debts is not significant. Provision for impairment losses on receivables will also
1% 27 696.063 be made if the situation so warrants subject to the BODs review and approval.
Salary increate rais L]0 P27.800.994 The following table represents the Club’s maximum exposure to credit risk:
-1% (27,525,904)
2016 2015
Cash and cash equivalenis® FI1,934,184 RI3.517. 176
Trade and other receivables 10,681,543 13.363,566
Trust fund 4,262,495 3,821,187

P36,878.222  P31.001,929

*Exvelrafes caxl o Ko
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Creellt quclity per class of fnancilal assel
The credit quality of financial assets is being managed by the Club using internal credit ratings.

5 of June 30, 2016

s = s = i - - . Less rhinm More
High grade financial assels are those that are current and collectible, Standard grade financial O il MWheys 3 iedbduyy  61inWdeyy  shan ) Duvs Tomd
assets need o be consistently followed up but are still collectible. Finavs il Iatalicies —
Ukher financisl Nabsfises
. ) - . Tradde puryabiles #1195 388 Ba1313 (. B PRITALY P10
The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial asset based on the Club’s credit Aocrucd exprescy 1K AS 74,108 1Ad.1ad Iaddsl 136,427 108, 34K
i A ., bt ® 1551250 114,618 11540 35400 LE2ATE AB29474
ratmg systen: Wembors depmits and oihers 75T TATARY
Skt 1crrs Toass it ialcoes
wnjacirs 18I A1% # = = = 2500415
As ol June 30, 2006 FILai8, 0 [T [T FIHLE? 2 AR W 1,07
Pty il amirm
Sediher due mor Impabred Pasi due Past due amd Liam end pzacrvabio
{aih and cinh cqinvalcss FEIoin agd [ - P - FEXOM AR
Stamilard bt Bod v kil ucally '|r.|..'|::.r|d.uh:r?r‘“-u.ﬂl-'
High grade grafe  ned impaied impaired Tatsl fracds rocenahles RITETT] I RIEERN LagTanl w1208 (RLTE T 23100488
Cash and cash equivalomin® F21,904, 184 F [ - FI1L%24, 184 Cabers AER 64 i = = (ETE NS 1371001
Trade and siher recelvables: Tl sl 4. D62 A0S - - - - o4 262 405
Trade receivables L1548 2 £ 190,656 11700 I LARRA31 PILTEA i 120 556 P14l IETE FLISLIT  FlaATE i
ihers - 13T M0E - - 171302 =i Ealen PRI il
Trust Nund 4,262 495 = - = 4,562 495
. PF27.305.214 P1.I71302 R, 198, 6 F1,175.090 P19 056,312 As of June 30. 2015
*Exciwes cash on vl
Lesa ths Moe
- i o | ¥ Days 3 1o A0 dass LA LTS than 91 Chsa Tistal
AS ﬂf l!.!“ﬂ' ]'D" -n'] 5 Firaneval Mabdlidhe
Lihar [inancial Bakubitics
M Tiracks paryables ETERIT 2 [ F LA PR e
N e Ty i e i e R —— 17550 29591 42,427 148,748 457 500 2310248
x Suandard et Individually Caher®* 1245734 1246206
High grais aide el ampairad Vistal Slemmhe depenin and sibers #1351, 1407 181,147
Cash and cavh oguavalents® FIZRIT.ET6 [ B (B B FIZEIT, I TH Khan jere Inass inckuding micres
Trade and otheer necervablos: AT S384.167 5344 167
Trade receivables 8,004, 1 B8 & (154 4810 2 M 4By U1 250080 LA RIRL] PRI FliLiz P15, TN PO IS Fil il
Ehirs - A 000 iK1 - [i¥} BET 4 105487 Finardod s
Trusd fiind LEILIET JE21,187 Loars and mogivabics
o 23313 T o = 3 Cath and cinh cgnvabec LR P [ F " FligILI™
B2 242479 1, 0] ) #5050 451 [FRITHH] FI3AT] 050 R R
*Excimdes cosh g ol Traike spevinabloy 460k | 16 1,360,508 3RS 1T R | 56
b FILLIN [ LT P EEE A% e R AT LTI
= . - . = Treast fiemsd 10,17 131,167
@ A financial assel is considered past due when the counterparty failed o make payment when Fo1oml aaT TFFIRTT TS Pt TR T ] ()}
—i =3
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contractually due. The Club has past due amounting to B3.2 million and #5.1 million as of
June 30, 2016 and 20135, respectively.

Impaired financial assets are those accounts identified by the Club that needs to be provided with
allowance. The level of this allowance is evalunted by management on the basis of factors that
affect the collectability of the accounts such as bul ol limited to the length of the Club’s
relationship with the member, the member’s payment behavior and known market factors.

The Club has impaired financial assets amounting to #2.2 million and #2.4 million as of
June 30, 20016 and 2015 (see Note 5),

Ligquidiny risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the nsk that the Club may not be able to settle or meet its obligations as
they fall due. The Club monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Club’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The table below summarizes the maturiny profile of the Club’s financial Liabilities as- of
June 30, 20016 and 2013, based on contraciual undiscounted cash flows. The table also analyses the
maturity profile of the Club's financial assets in order to provide a complete view of the Club's
contractual commitments, The analvsis into relevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates.

Annual Report 2015-2016
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Fair Yalues
Fair value 15 the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or lability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length iransactions.

The following methods and assumptions were used (o estimate the fair value of each class of

financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Ceslr and cash eqiivalents, rade amd otler receivables, fenst fund, frade and offer pavables,
members " depasit and others, and shovt term loons,

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trust fund, trade and
other payables, members' deposit and others, and short term loans, approximate their fair valoes
due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

AR ATEARSUETGRE) c
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Fair Vafue Hierarchy loput VAT
]I;:fn{;;::“:gl:: ::T“:c::::::-inﬁ I}iq:rarch:,.' for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial Balanice st July 1. 2015 B
: echnigue: i :
Current vear's domestic purchases/payments for;
Lewvel 1@ Quoded (unadjusied) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Gnqu other than for T‘ml" or manufacture :.3?9,94
Level 2 Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1| that are Capital .E"m"‘ls Exm""j"'.'gﬂ_‘ﬂm‘m 139,2
observable for the asset or liability, cither directly (as prices) or indirectly Domestic purchases of services 2,306,422
(derived from prices) . . 7,844,832
Level 3:  Those inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market dam Applied agamst output tax (7,844,837)
{unobservable inputs) Balance at June 30, 2016 -
As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Club does not have any financial instruments to be presented Withholding Taxes
under the fair value hicrarchy required by PFRS 7.
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits P1.498.617
Capital Managemient Expanded withholding taxes [.443.924
The primary objective of the Club’s capital management policy 5 0 ensure that it mainiains a Creditable withholding taxes 926,044
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize Final withholding taxes 460,000
members” value. The club manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of P4.328 585
changes in economic conditions. The Club is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

Other Taxes and Licenses
This includes all other taxes, local and national, including real estate taxes, hicenses and permit

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the years ended June 30, 2016 fees lodged under “Taxes and Licenses™ account under “General and Administrative™ section in

and 201 5. the statement of iIncome:
Eeal estate taxes P3. 127216
28, Supplementary Information under Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2010 Business taxes (local business tax) 659 550
Documeniary stamp ax 66,456
The Club reported and/or paid the following types of taxes in 2016: R1953 222
® VAT Tax Assessments ®

The Club did not receive any final tax assessments in 2016, nor did it have tax cases under
preliminary  investigation, litigation and/or prosecution in couns or bodies outside the
admimistration of BIR.

The Club’s sales are subject to output VAT while its purchases from other VAT-registered
individuals or corporations are subject to input VAT, The VAT rate is 12.0%%,

The NIEC of 1997 provides for the imposition of YAT on sales of goods and services,
Accordingly, the Club’s sales are subject o oiiput VAT while iz purchases from other
VAT -registered individuals or corporations are subject o input VAT, B.A. No, 9337 increaszed the
VAT rate from 10.0%% to 12.0%, effective February |, 2006.

Details of the Club’s net sales/receipts, output VAT and input VAT accounts are as follows:

a, Met SalesReceipts and Cutput VAT declared in the Club’s VAT retums

Met Sales!
Receipts Output VAT
Taxable sales:
Sales of services PO2,194,401 P11.063,328
Membership dues collected in advance TA20614 RO0,474
Exempi sales 28,722 849
Exempl membership dues collected in advance 2622175
130,960,039 211,953,802
AR R AR PRUA RO
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PRESIDENTS' CUP 2015
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BINGO SOCIAL * MAY 8, 2016 GOLFER OF THE YEAR 2015

MEET THE BOARD SOCIAL OF NE WMEMBERS 2016
] : - | AUCTION OF SHARE JUNE 15, 2016

Children in conflict w/ the Law (CICL),
Kanlungan ng Kabataan Village,
Bahay Kalinga, Senior Citizen [ DWP
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PRESIDENT PANGANIBAN
THANKS GIVING DINNER

Additional Golf cart Storage After

CHRB fence at Hole # 3 NC Before CHB fence at Hole # 3 NC Afler
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De-silting of Lake # 17 going Lake Removal of water lilies at Lagoon # “Removal of water lilies at Lagoon #
# 1 NC Before I NC Afier & NC Before 8 NC After
® ®

Rewmoval of water lilics at Lagoon #
6 NC Before 6 NC After Hole # 3 SC

Removal of water lilies at lagoon #

Construction of humps at Ortigas gate
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Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

Antipolo City, Philippines
www.valleygolf.com.ph

e-mail:

Direct Lines

Controllers
Restaurant
MIS
Motorpool
Pro-shop
Fax Nos.
Telefax
Trunkline
Laying of Additional chb at wall fence De-silting of Lake # 9 NC Locals
besides Hole # 8 SC Regs 1 101
Regs 2 102
Regs (Kiosk) 103
& — President 104
A et e GM 105
. Board Room 106
e Men's Locker 107
e FRRTFCACTD Ladies Locker 108
- Resto 109
Clinic 110
Guard n
Clubhouse 112

Affairs Manager

Removal of water lilies at Lagoon # 5 SC Removal of water lilics Lake # 10 8C
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info @valleygolf.com.ph

(02) B58-0089

(02) 660-5963

(02) 660-0227

(02) 660-5008

(02) 660-5964

(02) 658-4918, 658-4919
(02) 658-0079

(02) 658-4901 to 03

Swimming Pool
Membership
MIS-Handicapping

S&G - Lanie

S&G - Jonathan

Credit & Collection (Nato)
Credit & Collection (Beth)
Credit & Collection (Axis)
Logistic

HRD

Accounting

Auditor

[TRY/ (CLUB, ING,
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